1987

# Virgil Moore v. Fred C. Schwendiman, Cheif, Drivers License Services, State of Utah : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

1. Did the trial court err in refusing to grant the petition and to reinstate the driving privileges of the plaintiff-appellant based upon the fact that the trial court did not receive into evidence any document which was a sworn report filed within five days after the date of arrest with the Division of Driver License Services?

2. Did the trial court err in allowing the respondent to question the plaintiff concerning prior DUI arrests?

3. Did the evidence sustain the Court's finding that the defendant-respondent had met the burden of proof?

STATEMENT SHOWING JURISDICTION

Under §78-2(a)-3, Utah Code Annotated (effective December 31, 1987), the Court of Appeals has jurisdiction on the grounds that this case involves an appeal from a final order of a District Court review of a state agency, the Drivers License

Services Division of the Department of Public Safety for the State of Utah.

STATEMENT SHOWING NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order entered by the Honorable Raymond S. Uno after the hearing held on March 11, 1987. In that order the District Court sustained the decision of the Drivers License Services Division of the Department of Public Safety and continued the suspension of the plaintiff-appellant's driving privileges which was first entered on October 4, 1984.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTORY PROVISIONS

The plaintiff-appellant submits that this case can be determined under the statutory provision set forth in §41-6-44.10, U.C.A. (1953, as amended) (Addendum A).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

At the hearing on March 11, 1987, the defendant-respondent proceeded to present the evidence and called as his first witness a Salt Lake City police officer, R.K. Sullivan (T. 3).

Officer Sullivan testified that on Sunday, August 5, 1984, at approximately 3:28 a.m., he arrested the plaintiff-appellant Virgil Moore. He indicated that he first observed a vehicle at about 950 South State Street traveling southbound in the outside lane when it suddenly took a drastic dive towards the curb for no apparent reason. He indicated that he followed the vehicle down the roadway noting a slight weaving from side

to side. After the vehicle made another sudden movement to avoid making contact with barricades located at 1200 South State, he again followed the vehicle out on State Street to 1700 South where the vehicle made a right-hand turn. He stated that the vehicle made a wide turn, crossed over the center line into the eastbound lanes of travel and was traveling 48 m.p.h. in a 35 m.p.h. zone.

He then pulled over the vehicle and identified Virgil Moore as being the person in court who was operating the vehicle on the day in question. After testifying concerning his detection of slurred speech and the odor of alcoholic beverage, he administered the field sobriety tests. After the field sobriety tests, he placed Mr. Moore under arrest for driving under the influence of an alcoholic beverage, and he testified that he requested him to take a chemical test by reading verbatim the admonition from the DUI Report Form (T. 9). The officer indicated that Mr. Moore said he would take the test, and the officer instructed another police officer to transport him to the Salt Lake County Jail and administer a test (T. 10).

He later indicated that he was informed by the officer that the arrested person "had not completed the breath test," and so he filled out a report and submitted it to the Drivers License Division. The DUI Report Form was not received in evidence, and the officer indicated that he did sign a DUI Report Form dated August 5, 1984, in his own handwriting which he swore to by raising his right hand in front of a notary (T. 10)



On cross-examination, the report was marked by the attorney for the plaintiff-appellant as Exhibit 1 but was not received into evidence. Officer Sullivan indicated that he had no personal knowledge of whether or not Mr. Moore did take the test.

Q Do you recall requesting the other officer to go administer the test?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And do you recall filling out the report?

A Yes . . . .

Q Does that indicate that the arrested person refused to take the test?

MR. GAITHER: I will object to his conclusions about the document.

THE COURT: Unless there's more foundation, I think that the objection is sustainable.

MR. HALE: The foundation is he put it down, Your Honor. Isn't that correct; officer?

THE WITNESS: Yes, that's right. I listed that on the report.

On further re-cross examination by counsel for the plaintiff-appellant, the officer indicated that he had not heard any statements by Mr. Moore or observed Mr. Moore do any acts which would cause him to personally reach the conclusion that Mr. Moore had refused to take the test prior to the time that he filled out the report (T. 18). He did indicate that when Mr. Moore was in his presence, he stated that he would take the tests.

At the conclusion of Officer Sullivan's testimony, the attorney for the plaintiff-appellant made a motion to strike the entire last line of testimony concerning the information that Officer Sullivan received from Officer Cracroft about the alleged refusal to submit to the test as being hearsay. Counsel for the plaintiff-appellant indicated that he understood that the information was only being offered to show how the information got into the report, but it was hearsay as far as witness Sullivan was concerned. The Court indicated that the report would not be received until after the testimony of Officer Cracroft.

The next witness called by the State was David Cracroft, a police officer for Salt Lake City Police Department (T. 20). Officer Cracroft indicated that he was requested by Officer Sullivan to take Mr. Moore to the Salt Lake City Police Station located in Salt Lake City, Utah, to administer breath test. He indicated that he transported him to the place where the intoxilyzer was located at the entrance to the jail. He indicated that he was certified to operate the test, and he went through the standard procedure of running the intoxilyzer machine (T. 22). He stated that he put the hose to Mr. Moore's mouth, and he blew for just a short period, a second, and then quit blowing (T. 22). The officer testified that Mr. Moore puffed his cheeks, blew into the machine for a second and then no more air went into the machine, the sample light went out, so no air sample was going in the machine. The officer indicated that

he told Mr. Moore to blow until he told him to stop, and he did not do that. After which he told him, "Stop faking and blow into the machine or you could lose your license," (T. 23). He stated that Mr. Moore indicated to him that he was blowing, but the officer's conclusion was that he did not get any more air. At that point he stopped the test. Officer Cracroft indicated that he reported back to Officer Sullivan what had occurred concerning Mr. Moore's alleged conduct (T. 24).

On cross-examination the officer testified that there was a test record made from the intoxilyzer machine which he destroyed immediately after the incident. He indicated that he never recalibrated the intoxilyzer machine and had no records in court to show whether or not the machine was functioning properly at the time the test procedures were being given (T. 28). He stated that during the testing procedure as well as the green light that came on concerning the breath sample that the error light kept coming on. When asked whether or not the error light meant more than merely insufficient breath sample, the officer testified that "in this case it meant there was an improper sample, in my opinion. However, if there is a malfunction with the machine in any of the steps, the error light will come on," (T. 29). He stated that the error light is a red light that comes on during the testing procedure as opposed to the green light concerning the air sample. He stated that normally when the light comes on, you have to shut off the

machine and turn it back on and start over and recalibrate the machine, which he did not do in this case (T. 30).

On re-direct he indicated that he followed a checklist that is prepared in connection with the intoxilyzer machine but that he tore it up at the same time that the test card was torn up. On recross-examination the officer indicated that the error light came on about five seconds after the test and that there was enough time for him to put the tube up, take a short sample, remind him to blow again and then tell him that if he did not blow that he could lose his license. The officer testified that all of these procedures took place within the span of time of about five seconds before the error light came on and that it took place within a matter of "several seconds," (T. 34).

When the witness concluded testifying, the defendant-respondent rested. Counsel for the plaintiff-appellant made a motion at that time to dismiss citing §41-6-44.10, U.C.A. (1953, as amended), on the grounds that there was no evidence of a sworn report admitted into evidence; that the officer did not have any personal knowledge at the time the alleged report was completed; and that the Court did not have jurisdiction because there was no showing that the Driver License Division had jurisdiction initially to take the action to suspend the petitioner's driving privileges (T. 36). The plaintiff-appellant also made a motion to dismiss based upon the fact that no records concerning the intoxilyzer machine were introduced to show a foundation as to whether or not the machine was working correctly

or incorrectly in light of the testimony that an error light came on during the procedure. The Court denied the motion to dismiss (T. 41).

The plaintiff-appellant, Virgil Moore, then took the stand and testified that he was arrested on the day in question for driving under the influence. Mr. Moore indicated that he was told that he was not blowing into the machine but that he did blow into the machine at the time in question.

On cross-examination, the Court, over objection of counsel for the plaintiff-appellant, allowed the State to ask a question as to whether or not Mr. Moore had ever had a prior DUI arrest. The Court overruled the objection and counsel for the defendant-respondent was able to ask whether or not on April 16, 1983, he had been previously requested to take a similar test (T. 49). Over another objection by counsel for the plaintiff-appellant, the attorney for the defendant-respondent was allowed to ask whether or not the officer in the previous arrest had contended that he was not blowing properly into the machine. Mr. Moore indicated that the officer had previously made that contention (T. 51).

Thereafter, the plaintiff-appellant rested and the Court entered an order denying the petition and finding that there had been a refusal by the plaintiff-appellant (T. 53).

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Did the trial court err in refusing to grant the petition and to reinstate the driving privileges of the

plaintiff-appellant based upon the fact that the trial court did not receive into evidence any document which was a sworn report filed within five days after the date of arrest with the Division of Driver License Services?

2. Did the trial court err in allowing the respondent to question the plaintiff concerning prior DUI arrests?

3. Did the evidence sustain the Court's finding that the defendant-respondent had met the burden of proof?

#### ARGUMENT

##### I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO GRANT THE PETITION AND TO REINSTATE THE DRIVING PRIVILEGES OF THE PLAINTIFF-APPELLANT BASED UPON THE FACT THAT THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT RECEIVE INTO EVIDENCE ANY DOCUMENT WHICH WAS A SWORN REPORT FILED WITHIN FIVE DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF ARREST WITH THE DIVISION OF DRIVER LICENSE SERVICES.

The trial court did not have any evidence in this matter that the document which was referred to during the evidence as a report was ever submitted to the Driver License Division within five days after the arrest. The statute clearly requires that the report shall be submitted within five days from the date of the arrest. The defendant-respondent argued that the report was not jurisdictional and that the court did not need to receive the report because the matter was a trial de novo and sufficient oral testimony was introduced without the necessity for any documentation.

In the case of Helsten v. Schwendiman, 668 P.2d 509 (Utah, 1983), the Utah Supreme Court held that in Utah an officer's report that initiates the administrative revocation proceedings is a mandatory requirement of the statutes. In that case the Court found that the officer's report was not signed in the presence of a notary and was not a sworn report. Therefore, the Court ruled that the document failed to satisfy the statutory requirement of §41-6-44.10, U.C.A., and the Driver License Division revocation proceedings based thereon were invalid and the revocation of the person's driving privileges was a legal nullity.

In the Utah decision of Helsten, the Court cited the Oregon case of Blackburn v. Motor Vehicles Division, Department of Transportation, 576 P.2d 1267 (Ct.App.Ore., 1978). In the Blackburn decision, the Oregon court stated that the entire process toward suspension for refusal to take a breathalyzer test is initiated by the "sworn report." The Oregon court said that without this report the Oregon Motor Vehicle Division had no authority to commence the suspension process. The Court said the sworn report is in essence the basis of the Division's authority to consider suspension. The Court held that the sworn report is a jurisdictional requirement.

In Blackburn the Court went on to state that it would be unnecessary for the Court in the appeal to define the outer limits of the scope of the de novo review in the lower court of the Division's suspension order because of the irregularity

of the jurisdictional document. In the case of Colman v. Schwendiman, 680 P.2d 29 (Utah, 1984), the Utah Supreme Court followed the decision in Helsten and held that the sworn report is required to show the validity of the revocation proceedings and that if the report is not sworn, the subsequent proceedings would be void. In Colman they found that the revocation proceedings were a legal nullity because the officer did not follow the essential requirements to constitute the taking of an oath as required by the statute.

In matters where the District Court jurisdiction is based upon review of the action of an agency, even if the matter is on trial for a de novo review, the jurisdiction of the District Court is based upon whether or not the agency had subject matter jurisdiction. Berry v. Arizona State Land Department, 651 P.2d 853 (Ariz., 1982) The District Court in an appeal de novo has only the subject matter jurisdiction which could be asserted in the administrative hearing from which the appeal was taken. It is clear under the statute that if the report was not a sworn report or was not submitted within five days, the Driver License Division would not have jurisdiction to take away the plaintiff-appellant's driving privileges; therefore, the District Court would not have the jurisdiction to proceed over the subject matter at issue.

In addition at the hearing before Judge Uno and in this appeal, the evidence did not support the conclusion reached by the trial court that a sworn report was submitted to the



Drivers License Division. The plaintiff-appellant submits that the testimony indicated that the officer filled out a document entitled "DUI Report Form." On direct the officer merely indicated that he signed the DUI Report Form and submitted the DUI Report Form to the Driver License Division (T. 10). The evidence is completely absent that the document which the officer claims was submitted to the Driver License Division was more than a DUI Report Form and consisted of a "sworn report" as required by the statute. Later during the trial, on redirect examination, the attorney for the defendant-respondent attempted to elicit from the witness the conclusions contained in the documents (T. 17). The Court sustained an objection to the officer testifying about the conclusions contained in the document. Further questioning revealed that the last sentence of the report indicated that the officer may have signed a document which stated that the subject violated §41-6-44, U.C.A., which is the substantive provision for driving under the influence and is not related to the implied consent law (T. 17).

Therefore, the District Court did not have any sufficient competent evidence to make a ruling that a sworn report was ever submitted to the Driver License Division.

This Court should interpret the provision requiring that a sworn report be submitted within five days as jurisdictional as is clearly contemplated by the statute. There are many policy reasons for the Legislature enacting such a requirement, one of which being that these matters should be

done in a prompt and expeditious fashion. If that requirement is not construed as being mandatory, then there could be instances where an officer or the Driver License Division does not act on a sworn report for months or years after the reported incident takes place.

On the basis of the foregoing, the plaintiff-appellant requests that the Court find that the State of Utah did not meet their burden of proof in presenting all of the jurisdictional facts necessary before the District Court in opposition to the petition to have his driver's license reinstated. As a result of not meeting the burden of proof, the Court should have granted the petition reinstating the plaintiff's driving privileges.

## II

THE COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE RESPONDENT  
TO QUESTION THE PLAINTIFF CONCERNING PRIOR  
DUI ARRESTS.

As referenced in the Statement of Facts, the Court allowed the respondent's attorney to ask Mr. Moore if he had ever been arrested for a DUI. After overruling the objection for relevancy, the Court allowed the attorney for the respondent to ask Mr. Moore as to whether or not the officer in the prior case contended that he was not blowing properly (T. 51). Over objection by plaintiff's counsel, Mr. Moore was required to answer the question that the officer had previously contended that he had not blown properly into the machine. Counsel for the plaintiff then made a motion to strike the entire line of questioning based upon the fact that it was inadmissible hearsay

without foundation, arguing that if the Court allowed the evidence to be received, the Court would have to base its decision on inadmissible hearsay evidence. The Court denied the motion to strike the evidence.

In this case the Court may have possibly been correct in ruling that Mr. Moore's prior knowledge of the intoxilyzer machine may have been relevant to the civil proceedings. However, to do this the Court would have to find that the relevance outweighed the undue prejudice of evidence concerning his prior acts of misconduct. Notwithstanding the limited relevance of this line of questioning, it was clearly error to require Mr. Moore to either admit or deny the out-of-court declarations made by the arresting officer in his prior case. Those declarations were not introduced by means of any written or evidentiary documents but merely in the form of hearsay evidence to which Mr. Moore was required by the Court to either agree or disagree with as far as the conclusions of another party.

The questions of Mr. Moore were clearly inappropriate under the Rules 403, 404 and 802, Utah Rules of Evidence.

### III

THE EVIDENCE DID NOT SUSTAIN THE COURT'S  
FINDING THAT THE DEFENDANT-RESPONDENT HAD  
MET THE BURDEN OF PROOF.

In the case of Lopez v. Schwendiman, 720 P.2d 778 (Utah, 1986), the Supreme Court indicated that a district court must determine by a preponderance of the evidence whether the

petitioner's license is subject to revocation under the provisions of this chapter. In that case the Supreme Court indicated that it would give deference to the trial court's view of the evidence unless the trial court has misapplied principles of law or its findings are clearly against the weight of the evidence.

Plaintiff-appellant submits that the findings of the court here are clearly against the evidence and that the evidence did not support the conclusions reached by the court. The officer that filled out the DUI Report Form, which the Court concluded constituted a sworn report of refusal, only had personal knowledge that Mr. Moore consented to take the test. When Officer Sullivan asked Mr. Moore to take the test, he indicated that he would take the test.

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