1987

# Virgil Moore v. Fred C. Schwendiman, Chief, Drivers License Services, State of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The court record supplied substantial credible evidence showing that Officer Sullivan actually submitted his sworn DUI Report to the Driver's License Division in the requisite amount of time. Furthermore, the statutory requirement of submitting said report to the Driver's License Division "within 5 days" of arrest stated in U.C.A. § 41-6-44.10(2) must be directory in nature and not mandatory. This conclusion is reached by viewing the submission requirement in light of the legislative intent behind the DUI statutes in general.

The trial court did not commit reversible error in allowing the respondent to ask questions of the petitioner concerning particular incidents surrounding a previous DUI arrest. The sought after information is admissible under Rule 803(3) of the Utah Rules of evidence since it showed the declarants then existing state of mind. The information is also admissible under Rules 404(b) and 405(b) of the Utah Rules of Evidence. Finally, admissibility is proper since the testimony's

prejudicial effect does not substantially outweigh its probative value.

An arresting officer's sworn DUI report is valid and complete despite the fact that some of the information contained in it was provided by an other officer's personal knowledge. The "Fellow Officer's Rule" allows the arresting officer to swear to the truthfulness of facts provided him by a fellow officer.

Substantial and credible evidence sustains the district court's finding that upon a preponderance of the evidence the petitioner was found to have been driving while intoxicated and to have refused an intoxilyzer test.

#### POINT I

UNDER UTAH CODE ANN. § 41-6-44.10(2)  
THE 5-DAY SUBMISSION REQUIREMENT OF  
A SWORN DUI REPORT IS DIRECTORY AND  
NOT JURISDICTIONALLY MANDATORY.

Substantial and creditable evidence was presented at the District Court De Novo trial that Officer Sullivan submitted a sworn DUI report to the Driver's License Division within 5 days of the petitioner's arrest. The DUI Report Form shows arrest on 8-5-84 and receipt 2 days later.

U.C.A. 41-6-44.10-2(a)(iii) (as amended 1987) says that on "behalf of the division" the arresting police officer in a DUI case is to submit a signed report to the Department on a "form approved by the division" which serves as a temporary 30-day license. The reason for a signed report is obviously to give the Department notice to record the temporary license and that a hearing may be required to be set if requested. It also notifies the Department of the grounds for the arrest and revocation and

information on which officers are to be subpoenaed for a requested hearing.

The statute indicates that the report which sets forth the information required in U.C.A. § 41-6-44.10(2)(iii) is mainly to "supply to the operator, basic information regarding how to obtain a hearing."

The relevant question of inquiry can be divided into two parts. One, was the DUI report submitted within 5 days of the questioned arrest; and two, did the report contain sufficient information to notify the Department and the driver as outlined in U.C.A. § 41-6-44.10(2)?

This record contains "substantial evidence" that Officer Sullivan submitted his DUI report to the Division on time. When asked if he had submitted the report to the Driver's License Division, Officer Sullivan testified in the affirmative (T.T. 10). No evidence was ever introduced at trial to rebut the officer's statements on this matter, therefore the trial court's finding that the DUI report was submitted to the Driver's License Division can only be sustained.

The evidence shows that the report satisfied the statute and common sense. In the first 10 pages of the trial transcript counsel for the respondent elicited from Officer Sullivan the information that established probable cause to arrest the petitioner for driving under the influence, actual physical control of a motor vehicle by the petitioner, and the facts surrounding petitioner's refusal to submit to a blood alcohol test. When the officer was asked whether he filled out a

report representing those facts, he responded, "Yes, I did do that" (T.T. 10). Officer Sullivan identified the DUI report (Addendum I) that he submitted to the Driver's License Division and affirmatively testified that he swore to it the night of the arrest before a notary (T.T. 10).

Reading the whole Implied Consent statute and its stated public safety purpose (U.C.A. § 41-2-129), it should be clear that the 5 day submission requirement of a DUI report form in U.C.A. § 41-6-44.10(2) is directory and procedural in nature to the Division and not jurisdictionally mandatory.

The purposes of the DUI statutes in this state are expressed in U.C.A. § 41-2-19.5. and U.C.A. § 41-2-129 (amended January 1987). The statute clearly states that the purpose of Section 41-6-44.10 is for:

protecting persons on roads and highways by quickly removing from the highways those persons who have shown they are safety hazards by driving with a blood alcohol content above a certain level or while under the influence of alcohol and any drug or by refusing to take a chemical test that complies with the requirements of Section 41-6-44.10. (Emphasis added).

When the State of Utah enacts legislation such as its DUI statutes it has two competing interests that must be balanced and weighed and given consideration. First, the state has a legitimate and compelling constitutional interest and duty in the protection of its innocent drivers as expressed in its purposeful statement. Against this interest must be weighed against the privileges of the drivers who break the law. See Mackey v. Montrym, 443 U.S. 1 99 S.Ct. 2612 (1979) for an example as well

as Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319, 335, 96 S.Ct. 893, 903, 47 L.Ed2d 18 (1976). To determine the legislative intent concerning the mandatory or directory nature of the 5-day submission requirement for DUI reports, it might be analyzed as to whom the requirement was designed to protect, the state and its interests or the driver. If it is interpreted as directory, both interests are equally served. Five days directed and 30 days mandated to benefit the driver.

The states interest in quickly removing dangerous drivers from its roads and highways is compelling, but the Department of Public Safety must receive the notice or the license will not be suspended on the 30th day as required.

It could be argued that a mandatory purpose of the 30-day hearing time requirement also insures the quick resolution for the driver's benefit. During the 5 day or 30 day period the driver is in possession of a temporary driving license. His right to drive remains unaffected. This state's temporary driving license is valid until its is revoked by an agency hearing or for 30 days. Should the 30-day license expire prior to any requested administrative or judicial proceeding reviewing the merits of the revocation, the accused would surely have grounds for a temporary license extension or possibly a dismissal of the pending action. The 1988 Utah Administrative Procedures Act and § 41-6-44.10(2)(b) both provide for a reversal, and (c) for a court review. Mackey v. Montroy, Id. simply requires some form of procedural due process and opportunity to be heard subsequent to revoking a driver's license. There is in this

case, however, absolutely no evidence supporting or indicating that the petitioner's temporary license expired prior to the administrative hearing, therefore he received a prompt resolution prior to any final action even if the official report had been submitted late..

The above analysis makes sense. If a directory report is received after 5 days, then a requested hearing can still be held and reviewed. If the hearing shows that the driver is not dangerous, then both the state's and driver's interests are served. If mandated, then any harmless procedural error would leave a licensed dangerous driver on the highways. To hold that the 5 day requirement is jurisdictionally mandatory would ignore the fact that the driver is already protected by a temporary driver's license. It would also rob the district and appellant courts of jurisdiction.

Other civil proceedings that adjudicate individual privileges are not required to be docketed and disposed of in a short 25-day time period. Why would the legislature single out driver's license revocations to deserve special treatment in this manner?

The cited cases Helsten v. Schwendiman, 668 P.2d 509 (Utah 1983), Blackburn v. Motor Vehicles Division, Dept. of Transportation, 567 P.2d 1267 (Ct. App. Ore. 1978), and Colman v. Schwendiman, 680 P.2d 29 (Utah 1984) are not on point and the statute has since been amended. These cases solely address themselves to the necessity of a DUI report being sworn to, as was required, but specifically do not address the mandatory



jurisdictional arguments. Helsten v. Schwendiman, 668 P.2d 509, 512 (Utah 1983), not following Blackburn. See also Justice Oaks and Hall dissenting. Since the officer must appear and give a residuum of legally competent testimony, the report is solely necessary to the Department. Kehl v. Schwendiman, 735 P.2d 413 (Ut. App. 1987).

## POINT II

THE PETITIONER'S PRIOR ARREST EXPERIENCE  
SHOWED HIS STATE OF MIND AND WAS  
RELEVANT, ADMISSIBLE AND NOT UNDULY  
PREJUDICIAL.

The line of questioning that the petitioner opposes concerns information gained as a result of the respondent questioning him about a specific DUI arrest prior to the one in question (T.T. 48-51). The questions required simple "yes or "no" responses and were obviously designed to show that the petitioner had previous experience with an intoxilyzer machine. Specifically, questions of whether the officer in that previous case maintained that Mr. Moore had failed to blow properly into the intoxilyzer machine where relevant and not hearsay. Upon petitioner's objection to this question, the trial court felt that the question went to showing the state of mind of the declarant and admissible (T.T. 52). The respondent urges this Court to give great deference to the trial court's discretion and maintains that the question and response fall under hearsay exceptions Rule 803(3) of the Utah Rules of Evidence.

The question concerning the police officer's contention in this driver's previous case was material and relevant under Rule 404 of the Utah Rules of Evidence. Rule 404(b) of the same rule states:

Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other purposes such as proof of motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or accident. (Emphasis added).

This section is relevant to the question in that it allows evidence of past conduct to show that the petitioner's contended physical inability to blow was very possibly part of a preconceived plan and not a mistake or accident.

Furthermore, the narrow question was directed to a specific instance and therefore Rule 405(b) of the Utah Rules of Evidence may also be applicable.

In cases in which character or a trait of a person is an essential element of a charge, claim, or defense, proof may also be made of specific instances of his conduct. (Emphasis added).

The petitioner's unwillingness to correctly blow in the intoxilyzer machine in his previous arrest provides information showing a general unwillingness to follow intoxilyzer instructions and a desire to circumvent the purpose of the statute. In this particular case the Court could find that the petitioner intentionally failed to blow into the intoxilyzer machine after receiving proper instructions.

Ruling on the admissibility of evidence showing previous criminal behavior, the Utah Supreme Court in State v. Forsyth, 641 P.2d 1172, 1176 (Utah 1982) stated "The testimony is admissible if, and only if, it is relevant to prove some fact that is material to the crime charged." The petitioner in this case says he did not refuse the breath test under the implied

consent statute. Surely, the previous actions are relevant to the petitioner's state of mind in this civil case when he refused by failing to give an adequate air sample.

Rule 403 of the Utah Rules of Evidence excludes the admission of relevant evidence "when its probative value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice." The use of descriptive words such as "substantially" and "unfair" appear to indicate an extreme or out of the ordinary type of prejudice. The probative value of the evidence in question is high and it's "unfair prejudicial" affect is relatively low. The fact that there was already substantial evidence submitted by Officer Cracroft which showed the petitioner's conduct amounted to a refusal also minimizes any possible prejudicial effect of the corroborative information gained. Also, the strict application of the Rules of Evidence are primarily although not exclusively focused on protecting the accused from laymen juries who are not legally trained. This case was before a competent trial judge trained in evidence who's discretion should be upheld by this Court.

### POINT III

A POLICE OFFICER MAY TESTIFY TO A  
FELLOW OFFICER'S STATEMENTS MADE  
IN THE OFFICIAL COURSE OF BUSINESS.

At trial the petitioner contended that Officer Sullivan relied upon the hearsay statements of a fellow officer when he swore to the truthfulness of his DUI report. Officer Sullivan was not present when the petitioner allegedly refused to submit to the intoxilyzer test. Officer Sullivan relied upon his fellow

officer's word, Officer Cracroft, that there was a refusal and then entered that information into his sworn report (T.T. 10, 18, 19). The statute provides for help by fellow officers and no longer requires the same arresting officer to do everything in one case. Teamwork is necessary.

For example, the Utah State Supreme Court in State v. Nielsen, 727 P.2d 188 (Utah 1986) seemed to say hearsay is O.K. if it is reliable. Nielsen addresses the issue of whether the affidavit of a police officer supporting probable cause for a search warrant can contain hearsay of a fellow officer and still be valid. In the civil case at bar, the issue concerns the validity of a sworn DUI report in that it contains hearsay from a fellow officer as well. The two cases seem to be analogous except Nielsen was a criminal case that should have even stricter hearsay standards but did not.

Concerning the matter of fellow officer hearsay in a sworn statement, the Utah Court in Nielsen, supra. at p. 192 stated the following.

The use of hearsay evidence to establish probable cause does not necessarily undercut the validity of a warrant. If the hearsay is reliable, and there is a substantial basis for giving it credence, it will support the issuance of a warrant. United States v. Harris, 403 U.S. 573, 580-81, 91 S.Ct. 2075 2080, 29 L.Ed.2d 723 (1971); accord State v. Bankhead, 30 Utah 2d 135, 138, 514 P.2d 800, 802 (1973); State v. Treadway, 28 Utah 2d 160, 162-63, 499 P.2d 846, 847-48 (1972). In addition, there is a presumption that law enforcement officers will convey information to each other truthfully. See, e.g., United States v. Ventresca, 380 U.S. 102, 111, 85 S.Ct. 741, 747, 13 L.Ed.2d 684 (1965); McCormick v. United States, 309 F.2d 367, 372 (7th Cir. 1962), cert. denied, 372

U.S. 911, 83 S.Ct. 724, 9 L.Ed.2d 719 (1963);  
People v. Leahy, 173 Colo. 339, 484 P.2d  
778, 781 (1970); see generally 1 W. LaFave,  
Search and Seizure § 3.5(a) at 619-21 (1978).  
Therefore, double hearsay between police  
officers is not fatal on its face to the  
validity of a warrant.

The reliability of Officer Cracroft's statements  
concerning the petitioner's refusal to Officer Sullivan are in no  
way reasonably questionable, nor were they shown to be  
unreliable. The statements were made contemporaneously with the  
occurrence and they were personal observations made directly to  
Officer Sullivan. There is no indication in the record or  
elsewhere establishing a reason for why Officer Cracroft might  
lie. This compounded with the presumption that fellow officers  
will convey information to each other truthfully certainly  
provides the requisite reliability necessary to uphold the  
validity of the sworn DUI report. The trial court listened and  
observed as the fact finder and also believed the fellow  
officer's statements to be truthful and trustworthy under the  
circumstances. That Court's findings should therefore not be  
cast aside.

#### POINT IV

SUBSTANTIAL AND CREDIBLE EVIDENCE WAS  
PRESENTED AT TRIAL UPON WHICH THE TRIAL  
COURT COULD BASE THE DECISION UPHOLDING  
THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTIONS.

Substantial and credible evidence was presented at  
trial meeting all the requisite elements under Utah Code Ann. §  
41-6-44.10 statutorily necessary to revoke the petitioner's  
driving privileges for one year.

1. As the facts have more than adequately indicated, Officer Sullivan had grounds to believe that the petitioner was under the influence of alcohol. The petitioner's erratic driving pattern and inability to successfully perform the field sobriety tests provided an ample basis for grounds for arrest.

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